
AMENDMENT #3:  USTDA Activity No. 2020-11018A KADUNA ELECTRICITY 
DISTRIBUTION SUB-CONCESSION PROJECT 
 
POC: Anna Amaya, USTDA, 1101 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 1100, Arlington, VA 22209-3901, 
Tel: (703) 875-4357, Fax: (703) 775-4037, Email: RFP@ustda.gov.   
 
 
Please note that the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the FEASIBILITY STUDY for the 
KADUNA ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION SUB-CONCESSION PROJECT is amended, as 
follows: 

 
Questions, Answers and Clarifications:  This amendment consists of clarifying questions and 
answers submitted by potential Offerors regarding the RFP packet.  Responses to submitted 
questions are below. 
 
Question: Section 3 of the RFP says that each proposal must include - Plan for Integrating 
Contractor Staff with Grantee organization amongst other things. What is expected as part of this 
plan?  
 
Answer: Here we refer to how you envisage the grantee and contractor working together, given 
a lot of work has been done and some of the tasks we will be working on together. 
 
 
Question:  Sub-Task 4.2 – Legal Support for Right-of-Way Permitting and Negotiations 
Can the Guarantee clarify on the status of land acquisition? Has it identified land owners and 
initiated negotiations? We are interested in knowing the type of counter party that will be on 
these agreements. Is there a possibility to use some sort of Eminent Domain? Is that an option for 
a private developer such as Konexa in Nigeria? 
 
Answer:  

• There is land that has been identified that either belongs to the Government, Kaduna 
Electric (KAEDCO) or is private. Different counterparties will require different 
approaches and agreements however there is some progress that has been made. 

• There has been a lot of progress made on understanding the Right-of- Way (RoW) 
requirements for the project and a small number of private parcels of land have been 
identified. Overall though; 

• 80% of RoW is approved under a by-law allowing the distribution company to lay power 
lines by the roadside 

• Remaining RoW from private landowners is being discussed via KAEDCO 
• Land sites for substations/switchyard are to be provided under land held by title by 

KAEDCO 
 
 
Question: Sub-Task 5.2 – Utility Systems Architecture Design and Due Diligence 
Will this system be owned by Konexa or Kaduna Disco. Is the utility being referred to here 
Konexa? 
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Answer: All systems we are referring to will be owned by Konexa to manage its utility business, 
in this case the sub-franchise area.  
 
 
Question: Paragraph K in Annex II notes 12/31/2020 as the date by when the FS can be 
completed. We would like to note that this completion date is very ambitious and unachievable. 
Certain tasks such as the ESIA will need much longer to the completed. For e.g. per the Federal 
Ministry of Environment regulations for ESIA, at a minimum, a single season (dry or wet) needs 
to be field sampled and tested for ESAI. That will need at a minimum of six to seven months to 
complete the ESIA. Field sampling and testing over two season will extend the ESIA over a 12-
month period. This period just cannot be contracted if the FME regulations have to be met as 
noted in the ToR. Certain other things such as COVID-19 which restricts travel and the 
intervening US holiday season between Thanksgiving and Christmas also makes this schedule 
almost unachievable. Bottom of page 61 of the RFP document notes 10 months as the estimated 
time line to complete and deliver the FS. Please advise. 
 
Answer:  

• Point is noted however, we are hoping that for the ESIA work, data from the area that is 
already available can be used. We have done this for other projects. 

• We would hope that the use of local contractors for the ESIA workstream for example 
can help accelerate the process and not be delayed due to travel restrictions and 
Thanksgiving and Christmas holidays. 

 


